
MEETING OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD 
MARCH 21, 2022 

6:30 P.M. 
 

 

Town of Mint Hill 
4430 Mint Hill Village Lane 

Mint Hill, North Carolina 28227 
(704) 545-9726 

info@minthill.com 

 www.minthill.com 

 @TownOfMintHill 

 @townofminthill 

 YouTube Channel 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
2. ROLL CALL AND INVOCATION 
3. APPROVE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY, 2022 REGULAR MEETING 
4. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS OF AGENDA ITEMS 
5. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES, MEMBERS, AND STAFF 
6. OLD BUSINESS 
7. NEW BUSINESS  

A. DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATION ON #ZC22-1, FILED BY HATISHA MIKE, CONDITIONAL 
REZONING TO REQUEST A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM RESIDENTIAL TO RESIDENTIAL (CD) TO 
ALLOW A RESIDENTIAL ASSISTED LIVING FOR SENIORS, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 8025 
WILSON WOODS DRIVE, TAX PARCEL NUMBER 137-07-624 

8.  OTHER BUSINESS 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

  

http://www.minthill.com/
https://www.facebook.com/TownOfMintHill
https://www.instagram.com/townofminthill/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5LTHPE0q3K_NrtO2MP4y6w/featured
https://www.minthill.com/
https://www.facebook.com/TownOfMintHill
https://www.instagram.com/townofminthill/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5LTHPE0q3K_NrtO2MP4y6w/featured
https://www.minthill.com/departments/planning_zoning/development_activity/rezoning.php


VIEWING A PUBLIC MEETING ONLINE 
The Town of Mint Hill live-streams the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Commissioners, Planning 
Board and Board of Adjustment.  Anyone can view the live meetings or watch at a later time on the Town’s 
YouTube Channel.  To watch a meeting, hover a smartphone camera app over the QR Code to the right or 
navigate any web browser to https://bit.ly/2YBI0Rz.   

LIVE STREAM 

AGENDAS & MINUTES 
Current and past Agendas and Minutes for the Board of Commissioners, Planning Board and Board of Adjustment 
can be found at https://bit.ly/3gulVL4 or hover a smartphone camera app over the QR Code to the right. 

 
AGENDA & 
MINUTES 

 

https://bit.ly/2YBI0Rz
https://bit.ly/3gulVL4


MINUTES OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD MEETING 
FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

 
The Mint Hill Planning Board met in a regular session on Monday, February 21, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
John M. McEwen Assembly Room, Mint Hill Town Hall. 
  

ATTENDANCE 
Chairman: Tom Gatz 
Members: Kenny Draffen, Scott Fandel, Chip Todd, and Eric Tyson 
Planning Director: John Hoard  
Clerk to the Board: Savanna Ocasio 
Commissioner: Patrick Holton 
Absent: Roger Hendrix and Jennifer Manchester 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION 
  
Chairman Gatz called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., declared a quorum present and the meeting duly 
constituted to carry on business. Mr. Todd gave the invocation.   
  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  
Approval of Minutes for the January 24, 2022 Regular Meeting:  Upon the motion of Mr. Fandel, 
seconded by Mr. Todd, the Board unanimously approved the minutes of the January 24, 2022 Planning 
Board meeting.  
  
Additions or Deletions of Agenda Items: Planning Director Hoard deferred Agenda Item B to next month’s 
meeting. Mr. Fandel asked if February’s Board of Commissioners meeting was streamed and posted on the 
Town’s YouTube page. Planning Director Hoard said yes.  
  
Reports of Committees, Members and Staff: None. 
 
Old Business: None.  
  
 New Business:  
   
A. Discussion and Recommendation on #ZC21-16, Filed by Tim Arey, for property located at 11631 
Lawyers Road, Tax Parcel number(s): 197-011-42, 197-011-45, and 197-011-16, to request to amend 
#ZC19-9 Zoning Plan: Planning Director Hoard submitted the following memo to the Board.    
 

ZC19-9 was approved on September 10, 2020. The applicant is requesting an amendment to the 
approved ZC19-9 Zoning Plan. The need for the amendment is a result of the sewer extension. 
Charlotte Water will not allow sewer to extend through a private alley. If the requested amendment 
is approved, all alleys in McEwen Manor will be designated as public alleys. The applicant has 
agreed to meet CLT Water’s conditions to allow sewer in the public alleys and the alleys will be 
built to the Town’s specification. Conditional District decisions shall be made in consideration of 
identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional District rezoning is a legislative procedure 
under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten, add, vary, modify, 



or waive specific conditions or standards. In approving a petition for the rezoning of property to a 
Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request reasonable and appropriate 
conditions. 
 

Planning Director Hoard stated this site was originally approved in 2020 in which the plan included private 
alleys. Typically in Mint Hill, alleys were private; but Charlotte Water had an issue extending sewer into 
a private alley. When Staff heard this news, they began exploring options including possibly turning the 
private alley into a public alley. That eventually evolved into something the Town had discussed for a 
while which was to do away with private alleys and to turn all alleys to public. For this development, the 
proposal was to convert what was going to be private to public alleys to satisfy Charlotte Water. Staff had 
met with Charlotte Water where they provided the conditions for the alleys, the minimal width, and 
easements; the developer had agreed to meet all of those conditions. Planning Director Hoard stated the 
alley conditions had met the Towns requirements as they would oversee maintaining the alleys if made 
public. Planning Director Hoard and the developer were opened to answering any questions. 
 
Chairman Gatz asked what differentiated a private alley from a public alley. Planning Director Hoard said 
things had evolved over the last few years as private alleys were starting to move towards becoming public 
due to Fire apparatus access inconveniences in private alleys so for the last few years, it had been moving 
in that direction. He stated private alleys were similar to public alleys with the exception of the asphalt as 
it was more narrow, but the alley did meet the minimum width for sewer, Fire, and for the Towns future 
maintenance. Other than that, the difference was the communities HOA would take care of the alleys 
maintenance if it were private, but with becoming a public alley, the Town would maintain the road.   
 
Mr. Draffen asked what Charlotte Water was allowing for an easement as to where water and sewer would 
be located in the alleys. Planning Director Hoard said 30 foot right of way with an easement on either 
side; the easement would have some kind of language in there to prevent encroachment, or to be sure a 
house was not built there. Mr. Draffen asked if Staff received that in writing from Charlotte Water. 
Planning Director Hoard said yes, they had also met with Charlotte Water a few times where they 
explained exactly what they were requesting. Mr. Draffen stated for Fire apparatus, what was the width 
of the pavement? Planning Director Hoard said 20 feet. Mr. Draffen asked if parking would be allowed 
along the alley. Planning Director Hoard said no, the road was at least 20 feet wide, but he was unsure if 
“no parking” signs would be installed along the alley or if it would just be an Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Tyson asked if there was a significant cost increase to the Town with going from a private to public 
alley. Planning Director Hoard said yes, the Town would go from not maintaining the alley if private, to 
maintaining it if it were public so there was a cost increase. He stated the Town would receive a fraction 
of Powell Bill money which was money that helped maintain Town maintained roads. Mr. Tyson asked if 
this transition benefited the Town. Planning Director Hoard said Staff had previously spoken of moving 
towards public alleys, largely having to do with Staff fearing the possibility of an HOA not setting enough 
money aside to maintain the roads. In the long run, Staff was concerned with being put in a position where 
the alleys were failing as the HOA could not take care of it in which ultimately, the HOA would want to 
lean on the Town to help them. He stated keep in mind that the Towns trash service uses these alleys as 
well, so this was a way to get ahead by requiring a certain standard and being capable of maintenance. 
The good news with an alley was it was not used as heavily as a road, so the wear and tear should not be 
as significant as one might see on an average neighborhood street. 
 



Chairman Gatz stated the agenda mentioned frontage requirements along a public street. He asked what 
was meant by that. Planning Director Hoard stated when this application was originally filed, the applicant 
was leaning towards a public street. With a public street, the applicant would have had to ask the Board 
for an exception since it created a problem where the rear end of the homes would back up to the public 
street which created a code issue. Now that the applicant had gone towards this public alley, no exceptions 
to the code was needed. Chairman Gatz asked how the motion would read. Planning Director Hoard said 
when the zoning plan was approved in 2020, the plan only mentioned an alley, not including private or 
public so the Board was just amending the approved zoning plan by stating that the alley would be public.  
 
Mr. Todd made a favorable recommendation, seconded by Mr. Fandel, and the Board unanimously 
agreed to send a favorable recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on #ZC21-16, Filed by 
Tim Arey, to request to amend all alleys to a public alley.  
 
Other Business: Chairman Gatz asked if Planning Director Hoard could explain to the Board how the 
Draft Land Use Plan would be reviewed. Planning Director Hoard stated the idea they were working on 
was previously going to be presented to the Board tonight as the consultants were separating the plans 
into comprehensive plans in which they were going to run through its process. He stated in the contract 
with the consultants, they agreed to one sub area plan, but Staff had them do two, so there were a few 
things the consultants wanted to work on before they came before the Planning Board. They were not 
going to be ready before tonight’s meeting, so Staff recommended deferring this item to next months 
Planning Board meeting that way the consultants had enough time to finish the sub area plans, have Staff 
review it, and present it to the Land Use Committee all before next month’s Planning Board so they would 
be presented with the entire plan at once which included the comprehensive plan, policy recommendations, 
and the two sub area plans. The consultants would then go before the Board of Commissioners in April 
and hold a second public hearing in which the Board of Commissioners would vote, and a decision would 
be made. Chairman Gatz asked where the two-sub area plans were located. Planning Director Hoard stated 
the two-sub area plans were a portion of the Downtown, focusing on the land behind Town Hall in which 
the Town of Mint Hill owned. The other sub area plan was near Veterans Park. The consultants planned 
on sharing everything with Staff this week where they would review it. He stated it worked out this way, 
so the Planning Board was only being presented one presentation where everything was included. He 
stated at last months Board of Commissioners meeting when the consultant presented the Draft Land Use 
Plan, it was just for the comprehensive plan. Chairman Gatz stated it was a high-level presentation. 
Planning Director Hoard said yes, that was the direction Staff gave the consultants. He stated he wanted 
to focus more on the map itself with these policy recommendations rather than a thick manual.  
 
Adjournment: Upon the motion of Mr. Draffen, seconded by Mr. Fandel, and unanimously agreed upon, 
Chairman Gatz adjourned the meeting at 6:46 p.m.  
  
  

______________________________  
Savanna Ocasio  
Program Support Assistant  



STAFF REPORT
CASE# ZC22-1



APPLICATION

CASE: ZC22-1

EXISTING ZONING: R

PROPOSED ZONING: R (CD)

PROPERTY OWNER: Wyndam Whels Property Services Inc.

APPLICANT: Hatisha Mike

LOCATION: 8025 Wilson Woods Drive

PROPERTY ACREAGE 2.375

TAX PARCEL 

NUMBER(S):
137-076-24

REQUEST: Assisted Living Facility



STAFF REPORT

APPLICATION 

SUMMARY

The applicant is requesting conditional zoning approval for an Assisted Living Facility for ten senior residents for property located at 8025 

Wilson Woods Drive, Tax Parcel # 137-076-24.

Assisted Living Facility—A facility that provides supervision or assistance with activities of daily living, coordination of services by outside 

health care providers, monitoring of resident activities to help to ensure health, safety, and well-being but does not provide medical care in 

the way it is provided at a Nursing Home. 

R, Residential District. This district is designed to encourage the protection of the natural and manmade environment and resources and the 

retention of existing farmlands, rural estates, forested and water areas and other open type uses. This district contains diverse modes of 

living and housing types by encouraging building lots of varying size and dwelling unit densities consistent with the stated goals and 

objectives for promoting and protecting the unique rural and country village character of the Town set forth in the adopted Land Use Plan. 

Other selected uses, consistent with the needs of the community, are also provided for in this district.

Conditional District decisions shall be made in consideration of identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional District rezoning is a 

legislative procedure under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten, add, vary, modify, or waive specific 

conditions or standards. In approving a petition for the rezoning of property to a Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request 

reasonable and appropriate conditions

PLAN CONSISTENCY

Land Use Plan Assisted Living Facilities are not specifically addressed in the Land Use Plan. 

Downtown Master Plan N/A

Comprehensive Transportation Plan N/A

Pedestrian Plan N/A

RECOMMENDATION Favorable



LOCATION MAP


	PB 3.21.2022 Agenda
	PB 2.21 Minutes
	#ZC22-1 PB Staff Memo +

